

### **MINUTES**

of the **Bayside Traffic Committee**held in the Rockdale Town Hall, Pindari Room
Level 1, 448 Princes Highway, Rockdale
on **Wednesday 8 May 2024** at **9:25 AM** 

### Present

Councillor Liz Barlow (Chair)
Les Crompton, representing State Member for Kogarah
George Perivolarellis, representing State Members for Rockdale and Heffron
Senior Constable Matthew Chaplin, St George Police Area Command
Vinoth Srinivasan, representing Transport for NSW

### Also present

Bryce Spelta, Manager City Infrastructure, Bayside Council Sam Lindsay, Coordinator, Traffic & Road Safety, Bayside Council Raj Shah, Traffic Engineer, Bayside Council Shivam Patel, Student/Graduate Engineer, Bayside Council Aryan Shrestha, Business Analyst, Business Transformation, Bayside Council Phoebe Mikhiel, Manager Compliance & Community Safety, Bayside Council Paul Adams, Coordinator Parking & Safety, Bayside Council Shobna Maharaj, Traffic Committee Administrative Officer, Bayside Council

The Convenor opened the meeting in the Rockdale Town Hall Pindari Room, Level 1, 448 Princes Highway, Rockdale at 9.25am and affirmed that Bayside Council acknowledges the traditional custodians: the Gadigal and Bidjigal people of the Eora nation, and pays respects to Elders past, present and emerging. The people of the Eora nation, their spirits and ancestors will always remain with our waterways and the land, our Mother Earth.

### 1 Apologies

The following apologies were received:

Councillor Christina Curry

### 2 Disclosures of Interest

There were no disclosures of interest.

### 3 Minutes of Previous Meetings

### 3.1 Minutes of the Bayside Traffic Committee Meeting - 10 April 2024

#### **Committee Recommendation**

That the Minutes of the Bayside Traffic Committee meeting held on 10 April 2024 be confirmed as a true record of proceedings.

### **Business Arising**

The Committee notes that the Minutes of the Bayside Traffic Committee meeting held on 10 April 2024 were received and the recommendations therein were adopted by the Council at its meeting held on 24 April 2024.

# 3.2 Minutes of the Extraordinary Bayside Traffic Committee Meeting - 12 April 2024

#### **Committee Recommendation**

That the Minutes of the Extraordinary Bayside Traffic Committee meeting held on 12 April 2024 be confirmed as a true record of proceedings.

### **Business Arising**

The Committee notes that the Minutes of the Extraordinary Bayside Traffic Committee meeting held on 12 April 2024 were received and the recommendations therein were adopted by the Council at its meeting held on 24 April 2024.

### 4 Reports

# BTC24.055 Albyn Street, Bexley and Frederick Street, Rockdale - Proposed parking restrictions

### **Committee Recommendation**

- That approval be given to remove the existing bus stops along the northern and southern kerbline of Frederick Street, Rockdale as per attached drawings.
- That approval be given to install P5 minute 8:00 am 9:30 am 2:30 pm 4 pm School Days along the northern and southern kerbline of Frederick Street, Rockdale as per attached drawings.

That approval be given to install P5 minute 8:00 am - 9:30 am 2:30 pm – 4 pm School Days along the southern kerbline of Albyn Street, Bexley as per attached drawings.

# BTC24.056 Arncliffe Street, Wolli Creek; Bestic Street, Banksia; and, Hale Street, Botany - Proposed non-regulatory flood warning signage

### **Committee Recommendation**

That approval be given for the installation of variable messaging, LED signage at Arncliffe Street, Wolli Creek; Bestic Street, Banksia and Hale Street, Botany subject to the LED signage on the South side of Bestic street being relocated west so that it is not outside the residential property.

### BTC24.057 Bayside Council - Proposed changes to EV parking signage

#### **Committee Recommendation**

That approval be given to the proposed conversion of electric-powered vehicle charging parking only" (R5-40-1N) to "2P 6am–6pm Mon-Sun Electric Vehicles Only" (R5-2-10N).

### BTC24.058 Bonar Street, Arncliffe - Proposed Pram Ramp

### **Committee Recommendation**

- That in-principle approval be given for the installation of pram ramps and associated signage and line markings on Bonar Street, Arncliffe as per the attachment, subject to design investigation.
- That detailed design drawings be presented to the Bayside Traffic Committee for endorsement if the construction of pram ramps is feasible prior to implementation.

# BTC24.059 Brennans Road, Arncliffe - Proposed Resident Parking Scheme

#### **Committee Recommendation**

That a '2P 8:30 am – 6:00 pm' Mon - Fri, 8:30 am -12:30 pm Sat, 'Permit Holders Excepted' restriction be installed along the northern kerbline of Brennans Road, Arncliffe along the frontages of Property No. 14 – 22 Brennans Road, Arncliffe, as per attached drawing.

# BTC24.060 35-39 Duncan Street, Arncliffe - Proposed 25m Works Zone for 16 Weeks

#### **Committee Recommendation**

- 1 That approval be given to the installation of a 25m 'Works Zone, 7:00 am 5:00 pm, Monday Friday and 8:00 am 1:00 pm Saturday' restriction along the western kerb line of Duncan Street, for the duration of 16 weeks, subject to relevant conditions.
- That applicant must ensure that construction vehicles do not queue within Duncan Street or any other local roads in the vicinity especially concrete trucks during the construction period waiting to deliver goods to the site.
- That the existing parking restrictions in Duncan Street not be changed in view of this proposal and the two-way traffic flow be maintained in Duncan Street at all times unless separate road occupancy approvals have been obtained through Council's Public Domain and Referrals team.
- That approval not be given to the movement of 12m 'Heavy Rigid Vehicles' due to constraints in the existing road infrastructure and be limited to '11m' heavy vehicle only.
- 5 That the applicant notifies Council, six (6) Weeks in advance of required extension to the 16 week 'Works Zone'.
- That the applicant notifies the adjacent properties of the approved Works Zone and provides a copy to Council for record.

# BTC24.061 7 Francis Avenue, Brighton Le Sands - Renewal of 15m Works Zone for 12 Weeks

#### **Committee Recommendation**

- 1 That approval be given to the renewal of a 15m 'Works Zone, 7:00 am 5:00 pm, Monday Friday and 8:00 am 1:00 pm Saturday' restriction along the eastern kerb line of Francis Avenue, for the duration of 12 weeks, subject to relevant conditions.
- That the applicant must ensure that construction vehicles do not queue within Francis Avenue or any other local roads in the vicinity especially concrete trucks during the construction period waiting to deliver goods to the site.
- That the existing parking restrictions in Francis Avenue not be changed in view of this proposal and the two-way traffic flow be maintained in Francis Avenue at all times unless separate road occupancy approvals have been obtained through Council's Public Domain and Referrals team.
- 4 That approval not be given to the movement of 'Heavy Rigid Vehicles' due to

constraints in the existing road infrastructure and be limited to 'Medium Rigid Vehicle'.

- 5 That approval not be given to construction vehicles to arrive or depart from the site during school zone hours i.e. 8:00 am 9:30 am and 2:30 pm 4:00 pm school days.
- That the applicant notifies Council, six (6) Weeks in advance of required extension to the 30 week 'Works Zone.

# BTC24.062 Intersections of Dover Road and Ramsgate Street & Dover Road and Edward Street, Botany - Proposed 10m Statutory No Stopping Restrictions

### **Committee Recommendation**

That approval be given for the installation of statutory 10m 'No Stopping' restrictions in the form of yellow C3 line-marking at:

- 1 The intersection of Dover Road and Ramsgate Street, Botany as indicated in the attached plan.
- 2 The intersection of Dover Road and Edward Street, Botany as indicated in the attached plan.

### BTC24.063 Kenny Road, Pagewood - Proposed No Parking Restrictions

#### **Committee Recommendation**

- That approval be given for the implementation of 'No Parking 8:00 am 6:00 pm' restrictions along the western kerb of Kenny Road Pagewood as indicated in the attached plan for a trial period of 6 months after which parking restrictions will be reviewed.
- That approval be given for the installation of statutory 10m 'No Stopping' restrictions at the intersection of Kenny Road and Heffron Road & Kenny Road and Park Parade along the western kerb, Pagewood in the form of continuous yellow lines (C3 line-marking) as indicated in the attached plan.

# BTC24.064 King Street, Rockdale - Proposed Extension of 1P Parking Zone

### **Committee Recommendation**

That the current '1P 8:30 am – 6:00 pm Mon - Fri & 8:30 am - 12:30 pm Sat' parking restrictions on King Street, Rockdale be extended by 6m to accommodate an additional parking space by shortening the existing 'Taxi Zone' by 6m as indicated in

the attached plan.

## BTC24.065 Mitchell Street, Arncliffe - Proposed Timed Parking Restrictions

### **Committee Recommendation**

- That approval be given for the implementation of '½ P 8:30 am 6:00 pm Mon Fri 8:30 am 12:30 pm Sat' parking restrictions along Mitchell Street, Arncliffe as indicated in the attached plan.
- That approval be given for the adjustment of the timing of the loading zone on Mitchell Street, Arncliffe from '8:30 am 6:00 pm' at all times to '7:00 am 11:00 am Mon Fri' as indicated in the attached plan.

# BTC24.066 Ramsgate Street, Botany (in front of St Bernard's Catholic Primary School) - Proposed extension of 'No Parking

#### **Committee Recommendation**

That approval be given to the installation of 'No Parking, 8:00 am – 9:30 am and 2:30 pm – 4:00 pm, School Days' restriction along the northern kerb line of Ramsgate Street, Botany in front of St Bernard's Catholic Primary School as per attached drawings.

## BTC24.067 10 Tingwell Boulevard, Eastgardens - Request for 70m Works Zone on Banks Avenue

### **Committee Recommendation**

- 1 That approval be given to the installation of a 70m 'Works Zone, 7:00 am 6:00 pm, Mon Fri and 7:00 am 3:00 pm Sat' restrictions along the eastern kerb line of Banks Avenue, for the duration of 26 weeks, subject to relevant conditions.
- That the applicant must ensure that construction vehicles do not queue within Banks Avenue or any other local roads in the vicinity especially concrete trucks during the construction period waiting to deliver goods to the site.
- That the existing parking restrictions in Banks Avenue not be changed on account of this proposal and two-way traffic flow be maintained in Banks Avenue at all times unless separate road occupancy approvals have been obtained through Council's Public Domain and Referrals team.
- That the developer and associated sub-contractors notify Council's Traffic and Road Safety Team of any proposed applications through the 'National Heavy Vehicle Regulator' authority.
- 5 That the developer and associated sub-contractors comply with conditions

imposed by the 'National Heavy Vehicle Regulator' approved Permits.

- That all inbound construction vehicles approaching the site from south must use Wentworth Avenue, turn left into Bunnerong Road, turn left into Heffron Road and into Banks Avenue. All outbound construction vehicles must manoeuvre within the site and turn left onto Banks Avenue and then turn into Wentworth Avenue.
- 7 That the applicant notifies Council 6 Weeks in advance of required extension to the 26 week 'Works Zone'.
- That the applicant notifies the adjacent properties of the approved 'Work Zone' and provides a copy to Council for record.
- 9 That Council be notified if a 'Work Zone Permit System' is required, similar to the current arrangement in place for the approved Work Zone on Tingwell Boulevard, for approval by Council's Traffic and Compliance teams.

# BTC24.068 145 Wolli Street, Kingsgrove - Proposed 15 minutes Drop-off and Pick-up Zone

#### **Committee Recommendation**

- That approval be given for the designated drop-off and pick-up zones from 7:00 am to 10:00 am and 2:30 pm to 6:00 pm, Monday to Friday, at the frontage of 145 Wolli Street, Kingsgrove.
- 2 That the child-care centre operator be charged the cost of installation of the required signage.

# BTC24.069 Update on Outstanding Matters Referred to the Bayside Traffic Committee by the Chair

#### **Committee Recommendation**

That the update on outstanding matters referred to the Bayside Traffic Committee by the Chair be noted.

# BTC24.070 Matters referred to the Bayside Traffic Committee by the Chair

The following matters were raised by the Chair:

- 1 Banksmeadow Public School Parking in Stephen Road & Brighton Street Council Officers to investigate parking during school drop off & pick up.
- 2 Council Car Park on Forest Road & Stoney Creek Road Council is currently

undertaking consultation with businesses on parking options.

3 33 Union Street, Kogarah – Request for disabled parking outside the property. Council Officers to investigate.

### **Committee Recommendation**

That the matters raised by the Chair be received, noted and action taken as necessary.

### BTC24.071 General Business

The following matter was raised by the Representative for State Member for Kogarah:

 Eton Street at the intersection with Stoney Creek Road – Request for No Right Turn from Eton into Stoney Creek Road due to safety concerns. Council Officers to investigate.

The following matter was raised by the Representative for Rockdale and Heffron:

 Cnr of Clareville & Russell Avenue, Sandringham – Request for pedestrian crossing in Clareville Avenue along the commercial premises. Council Officers to investigate.

### **Committee Recommendation**

That the matters raised in General Business be received, noted and action taken as necessary.

The Convenor closed the meeting at 9.50am.